






























































At the time of the cannery’s comple-
tion in 1869, Clifton could only be
reached by sailboat. The motorcar hadn’t
been invented, and the railroad hadn’t ar-
rived. Clifton couldn’t be reached by
horse, either, because no trail led to it.

That meant the men had to establish
homes in the new town. Most built float-
houses first, moored to pilings pounded
into the soft mud at the river’s edge. Lat-
er, many of the immigrants built larger,
more substantial 2-story homes on the
river bank, using sturdy cedar pilings
driven deep into the mud.

The Greeks tended to setle in upper
Clifton, or “Uppertown,” near the site of
the original cannery. The Slavs and the
Italians chose to settle in “Lowertown,”
where a second cannery was constructed
sometime before the turn of the century.

The railroad, completed about 1900,
brought with it a pass-through of people
that spawned restaurants, saloons, hotels
and dance halls at both ends of Clifton.
One complex came to include a roller
skating rink, as Clifton had surprisingly
become something of a tourist attraction.

A railroad depot was built in Lower-
town, with a store, post office and school-
house coming later. Oldtimers say a can-
making plant also may have been operat-
ing in Clifton at one time.

Across the Clifton channel on 1700-
acre Tenasillahe Island, (now a national
game refuge), other immigrants settled.
Most of them made their living by sein-
ing for salmon with huge, horse-drawn
nets, while others worked on the island’s
dairy ranch or its cheese factory. Chil-
dren on the island crossed the channel by
boat each weekday morning to go to
school, and it often was a chilly ride.

At its peak, Clifton was the home of
several hundred inhabitants, with another
100 residing across the river on Tenasil
lahe. Several factors drove the residents
away.

First, larger, more modern canneries
were being built downriver near Astoria.

MANY SETTLERS
SEINED FOR
SALMON WITH
HORSE-DRAWN
RIVER NETS

Second, laws were passed which prohibit-
ed seining, and it became illegal for immi-
grants to gillnet for salmon in Oregon wa-
ters. For these reasons, the canneries
closed their doors, and with them went
Clifton’s other commercial establishments
as well, hastened along by the onset of
prohibition.

After the canneries and public estab-
lishments vanished, many of the immi-
grants returned to their native lands. Oth-
ers left to look for other types of work
elsewhere in America.

About 1940, the schoolhouse closed,
after educating many a local fisherman.
The post office lasted longer, but finally
closed its doors as well. The rail depot
shut up shop when the popular passen-
ger train became not so popular, and de-
parted as Clifton’s population began to de-
cline.

By the time the county constructed a
road to Clifton from Highway 30 around
1945, (which the oldtimers say took a little
“under the table” coaxing), little was left
but a few abandoned buildings.

Many have been claimed by the
harsh, wet climate of the mighty Colum-
bia River over the years, but some still
stand, and remain silent reminders of
what once was.

The only substantial, larger structure
remaining is the Lowertown cannery and
its outbuildings, purchased by a small
group of longtime Clifton fishermen, who
use it as a fish receiving station, storage
warehouse and moorage. The old post
office, one of the very first opened in the
Northwest, stands today, but has fallen
into a sorry state of disrepair.

The Uppertown cannery, once a fa-
vorite of painters and poets, blew down
in a violent winter windstorm in 1981.
The adjoining netrack lasted longer, but fi-
nally succombed to the elements of na-
ture in last winter’s snowstorm.

Eleven homes still remain, and most
are occupied by Clifton’s handful of resi-
dents today.







}Q;! A Wave Goodbye

Walt “Irv” Josephson
1912-1990

Lifetime Astoria resident
and longtime friend Walt “Irv”
Josephson passed away June
19 at South Naknek, Alaska.
He was 78.

Irv was born February 12,
1912, in Astoria, the son of An-
ton and Signey Baker Joseph-
son. He attended Astoria
schools.

Irv had worked as a com-
mercial fisherman on the Co-
lumbia River and on Bristol
Bay, Alaska for much of his
life.

For forty-two summers he
worked for Bumble Bee Sea-
foods, now South Naknek Sea-
foods, at its South Naknek,
Alaska plant, and was working
as net boss this summer.

Irv was a member of the
Columbia River Fishermen’s
Protective Union, the Astoria
Elks Lodge and the Columbia
River Maritime Museum.

Surviving are two daugh-
ters, two granddaughters, three
grandsons and seven great-
grandchildren.
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Gustay E. Peterson
1887-1990

Ninety-nine year Astoria
resident Gustav Emil Peterson
passed away here February 23.
He was 102.

Born the son of Gustav and
Anna Peterson in 1887, at St.
Paul, Minnesota, Mr. Peterson
moved to Astoria at the age of
three, and attended Astoria
schools.

Mr. Peterson was a Colum-
bia River gillnetter for many
years, and also worked at
McGregor’s Mill and the Foard
and Stokes Store. He was em-
ployed by the U.S. Postal Ser-
vice until retirement.

A life member of the Sons
of Norway, the Astoria Elks
Lodge and the Scandinavian
Benevolent Society, Mr. Peter-
son helped construct Astoria’s
first Lutheran church. He was
also one of the first members of
the Columbia Club basketball
team in 1911.

Surviving are a son, a
daughter, two grandchildren, a
great-grandson and several
nieces and nephews.

John McGowan, President

Henry Desler, Vice President

Robert Lovell, Secretary

Howard Johnson, Treasurer

Geoffrey Stone, Asst. Secretary/Treas

Wayne Issic Oyala
1917-1990

A Mayger resident for 72
years, Wayne I. Oyala died
March 3 in Portland.

Mr. Oyala was born in
Mayger August 27, 1917, the
son of Jacob and Anna Reinik-
ka Oyala. He attended area
schools and graduated from
Clatskanie High School.

Mr. Oyala served in the
U.S. Navy during World War
II, and was a decorated vete-
ran. He received the American
Area Campaign, Philippine Lib-
eration, Asiatic-Pacific Cam-
paign and WWII Victory med-
als as well as a unit citation
from the Fifth Fleet.

A member of the Columbia
River Fishermen’s Protective
Union, Mr. Oyala worked as a
commercial fisherman and as a
carpenter.

He served as Captain of the
Clatskanie Volunteer Fire De-
partment for many years.

Surviving are his wife of 48
years, Dellis, of Longview,
Washington; two sons, a sister
and three grandchildren.
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Proudly working to improve Commercial Fishing
Opportunities on the Lower Columbia River

Port Commissioners

Recent Developments

eFour boat berths added at East End Basin in July
eDredge permit for West End Basin given tentative

approval

*Bids for concrete replacement for East End Basin’s
wooden causeway now requested

PORT oF ASTORIA
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Toivo U. Puustinen
1909-1990

A commercial fisherman
on the Columbia River and
professional seal hunter, Toivo
Puustinen passed away June
14 at his home in Svensen. He
was 81.

Born February 8, 1909 in
Astoria, Mr. Puustinen was the
son of Paul and Riika Hartikai-
nen Puustinen. He attended
Astoria schools, as well as Ore-
gon State University in Corval-
lis.

In his later years, Mr. Puus-
tinen was an independent insu-
rance agent. He was also a
member of Temple Lodge No.
7 AF. & A M., and was the au-
thor of two books.

Surviving are a son, a
daughter, two brothers, two sis-
ters, one granddaughter, two
grandsons, one great-
granddaughter and many niec-
es and nephews.




















































